
 
                                     DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY 
                                 BOARD FOR CORRECTION OF NAVAL RECORDS 

                                          701 S. COURTHOUSE ROAD, SUITE 1001 

                                                   ARLINGTON, VA  22204-2490 

          

          Docket No. 1684-23 

 Ref:  Signature Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Petitioner: 

 

This is in reference to your application for correction of your naval record pursuant to Section 

1552 of Title 10, United States Code.  After careful and conscientious consideration of relevant 

portions of your naval record and your application, the Board for Correction of Naval Records 

(Board) found the evidence submitted insufficient to establish the existence of probable material 

error or injustice.  Consequently, your application has been denied.    

 

A three-member panel of the Board, sitting in executive session, considered your application on 

2 May 2024.  The names and votes of the members of the panel will be furnished upon request.  

Your allegations of error and injustice were reviewed in accordance with administrative 

regulations and procedures applicable to the proceedings of this Board.  Documentary material 

considered by the Board consisted of your application, together with all material submitted in 

support thereof, relevant portions of your naval record and applicable statutes, regulations, and 

policies, to include the Kurta Memo. In addition, the Board considered the 20 March 2024 

Advisory Opinion (AO) from a qualified medical professional and your rebuttal to the AO. 

 

The Board determined that your personal appearance, with or without counsel, would not 

materially add to their understanding of the issues involved.  Therefore, the Board determined 

that a personal appearance was not necessary and considered your case based on the evidence of 

record. 

 

A review of your record shows that you enlisted in the Marine Corps and commenced active duty 

on 7 September 2005. You deployed in support of  ( ) from  

12 February 2009 to 1 September 2009.  You underwent a second deployment in support of  

from18 February 2010 to 13 September 2010.  In November 2019, while assisting a Marine with 

reseating targets at the range, you tore your left distal biceps tendon.   You underwent surgery on 

20 November 2019 and started physical therapy.  On 6 January 2020, you were admitted to the 

outpatient Substance Abuse Rehabilitation Program (SARP) and you were diagnosed with severe 

alcohol use disorder.  For your fitness report ending on 1 June 2020 you were assessed as a 

“Qualified Marine” and recommended for retention and promotion due to your technical 

expertise in your military occupational specialty (MOS).  In July 2020, you were referred to the 

Disability Evaluation System (DES) for diagnosis of spontaneous rupture of left upper arm 

tendons.  On 24 February 2021, as part of your non-medical assessment, your commanding 
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officer (CO) stated the left upper arm injury was in the line of duty, not combat related and not 

combat zone.  He stated the injury had affected your dominant hand rendering you unable to 

perform the requirements of your rank and specialty.    

 

On 27 April 2021, the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) released their ratings for your 

service-connected conditions.  Subsequently, on 6 May 2021, the Informal PEB found you unfit 

for continued military service and recommended separation from active duty with severance pay 

at a combined 20% rating for Status Post Distal Biceps Tear with Surgical Repair and Left 

Elbow Strain, Limitation of Flexion, Non-Dominant at 20% disability rating and 2) Status Post 

Distal Biceps Tear with Surgical Repair and Left Elbow Strain, Limitation of Extension, Non-

Dominant at 0% disability rating.  On 11 May 2021, you accepted the IPEB finding of Unfit at 

20%, did not request a formal PEB hearing, and did not submit new and/or additional 

information for a VA rating reconsideration for your unfitting conditions.  

 

On 30 June 2021, you underwent non-judicial punishment for three violations of Article 89 

(Disrespect toward a Superior Officer) of the UCMJ.  You received 45 days of extra duty.  Your 

CO notified you of his intent to recommend administrative discharge by reason of pattern of 

misconduct; however, your CO did not continue with processing and you were discharged on  

15 August 2021 for Disability, Severance Pay, Not Combat Related with an Honorable 

characterization of service. Your Certificate of Release or Discharge from Active Duty (DD 

Form 214) states Disability, Severance Pay, non-combat, as the narrative reason for separation.   

 

For this petition, you request to be medically retired due to post-traumatic stress disorder 

(PTSD).  You contend that as a result of experiencing multiple traumatic events on deployment 

you began to experience unprovoked anger, depression, insomnia, and discontentment.  You 

further contend you abused alcohol as a coping mechanism and should have been referred to the 

DES for your mental health as well.  You included a rating decision from the VA, and a letter 

from your mental health provider to support your contentions. 

 

Based on your assertions that you incurred a mental health concern (MHC) during your military 

service, a qualified mental health professional reviewed your request for correction to your 

record and provided the Board with an AO.  The AO stated in pertinent part: 

 

After review of all available objective clinical and non-clinical evidence, in my 

medical opinion, at the time of discharge from military service, Petitioner’s mental 

health condition did not prevent him from performing the duties of his office, grade, 

rank, MOS, or rating. His mental health status did not represent an obvious medical 

risk to the health of the member or to the health or safety of other members, nor did 

his mental health status impose unreasonable requirements on the military to 

maintain or protect the Service member. 

 

The AO concluded, “in my medical opinion, the preponderance of objective clinical evidence 

provides insufficient support for Petitioner’s contention that at the time of his discharge he was 

unfit for continued military service due to PTSD and should have been medically retired.” 

 






